
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

      
   3 June 2014 

 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

EASTLEIGH MUSEUM JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

will meet on 
Wednesday, 11 June 2014 

beginning at 
11:00 am 

at 
Bursledon Windmill 

 
TO: Councillors Bicknell, Irish and Mrs Sollitt 

 County Councillors Davidovitz, Kyrle and Lyon 
Tom de Wit County Arts and Museums Service 
Tim Kelly Hampshire Arts and Museums Service 
Jean Roberts-Jones One Community 
Guy Riddoch Area Co-ordinator 
  
  

 
 
Staff Contact: Jon Brown, Democratic Services Tel: 023 8068 8124; 

Email: jon.brown@eastleigh.gov.uk  

   

 
RICHARD WARD 

Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

AGENDA 

 
 
1. Apologies     
 
2. Appointment of Chairman      
  
 (NOTE: The Chairmanship alternates annually between the two authorities. For the 

year 2014-15 the Chairman will be appointed from the Borough Council members 
of the Committee.)  

  

 
Eastleigh House,  

Upper Market Street, 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 



 

 

3. Appointment of Vice-Chairman      
  
 (NOTE: The Vice-Chairmanship alternates annually between the two authorities. 

For the year 2014-15 the Vice-Chairman will be appointed from the County Council 
members of the Committee.)  

  
4. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 10)  
  
 To agree the Minutes of the meetings held on 9 October 2013 and the joint 

meeting of Bursledon Windmill and Eastleigh Museum Joint Management 
Committees on 5 February 2014.  

  
5. Curator's Report and end of year finances    (Pages 11 - 26) 
 
6. Update on Hampshire Solent Cultural Trust    (Pages 27 - 28) 
 
7. Annual small bodies return 2013/14    (Pages 29 - 32) 
 
8. Date and Venue of Next Meeting     
 
 
 



 

 

EASTLEIGH MUSEUM JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 9 October 2013  (12:07 pm – 11:00 am) 
 

The meeting was held at the Civic Offices, Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
PRESENT: 

 
Representing Eastleigh Borough Council - Councillors Bicknell, Irish and Mrs 
Sollitt 
 
Representing Hampshire County Council – Councillors Davidovitz, Kyrle and 
Lyon 
 

 Tom de Wit - County Arts and Museums Service
 Tim Kelly - County Arts and Museums Service
 Guy Riddoch - Area Co-ordinator
 Julia Allan - One Community 
  

 PRESENTATIONS 

 Prior to the meeting, the following presentations were provided for members 
of both Eastleigh Museum and Bursledon Windmill Joint Management 
Committees: 
 
Schools’ Service for both sites – Janet Wildman, Community Engagement 
and Learning Officer for SE Hampshire 
 
Museums Accreditation 2013 - Jo Bailey, Collections Team Manager 
 
The Big Theme 2014 (focusing on the centenary of the First World War) – 
Tom de Witt, Area Curator 
 
Agenda items 5 and 6 were then considered first, in conjunction with 
Bursledon Windmill Joint Management Committee. 

  
1. MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of the meeting held on 15 May 2013 were agreed as a correct 

record, subject to the second sentence of Item 8, paragraph 2 being 
amended to read “good” practice. 

 
2. CURATOR'S REPORT 
 
 The Area Curator introduced a report detailing activities and events at the 

Museum since the last meeting of the Committee. 
 
One Community had worked with Open Sight, a charity for people with 
visual impairment, to produce Visions of the Past, an exhibition which told 
the story of blind and partially sighted people in Hampshire since 1920 
through people’s own stories.  

Agenda Item 4

1



 

 

 
Local community groups and volunteers had made a huge contribution to 
the Meet the Victorians exhibition, with the whole town taking part in the 
opening event, The Victorians are in Town.  This hands-on, multi-sensory 
exhibition had been targeted at families with young children and schools 
(especially KS2).  The exhibition team had produced a core element, 
replicated across six venues, while Community Engagement and Learning 
(CEL) teams worked with local groups and individuals to add local displays 
and activities.    
 
Visitor figures for the year to August showed a consistent improvement on 
the previous year’s performance every month. 
 
The Collections Team had been heavily involved in managing the 2013 
Accreditation submission to the Arts Council during the past year.  The 
Accreditation Assessor had undertaken a preliminary review of the Eastleigh 
Museum return and had taken the museum to the 19 September panel 
meeting.  It was reported that the Museum had subsequently been awarded 
accreditation.  
 
Research and conservation was underway on the 14 cases of taxidermy 
from the Thomas Atkinson Cotton Collection at Chilcomb House that were to 
be put on display at the Museum from 16 November.  This collection of 
British birds had been created by Thomas Cotton (1856/7 – 1925), who lived 
at the Mount in Bishopstoke.  He collected the birds, his wife Charlotte 
painted the backgrounds and his brother Charles did the taxidermy.  He built 
a museum at the Mount filled with over 1000 specimens and described as 
one of the finest natural history museums and aviaries in the county.  The 
exhibition would also explore the history of the Mount itself, especially in the 
Cotton era, and Museum staff were working closely with the Bishopstoke 
Local History Society.     
 
Over the five month period April to August 2013, the CEL team had worked 
with 7 school groups in the Museum and 2 as outreach, a total of 252 pupils.  
This made a total of 542 for the academic year, an increase on last year’s 
504.   
 
A diverse programme of activities and events had also been offered to, 
families and the local community  over this five month period, in which 422 
people had taken part. These included Game On!, a board game-making 
workshop, and a number of activities linked to the Meet The Victorians 
exhibition.  All feedback received had been very positive. 
 
Additionally, CEL officers had been working with local history groups, One 
Community Museum Volunteers and local historians to produce local 
elements of the Meet the Victorians exhibition.   
 
Regular publicity and promotion, both in hard copy and online, continued to 
be undertaken, together with the visitor postcode profiling. 
 

2



 

 

During the discussion of the report, it was queried whether local companies 
worked with the Museum on projects as part of their corporate social 
responsibility.  The Area Curator reported that a number of local companies 
worked with one Community at the Museum.  Currently there were two 
groups decorating and one group making improvements to the kitchen.  If 
Members knew of any other companies wishing to support the Museum, 
they should contact the Area Curator.  
 
It was AGREED -  
 
That the report be noted. 

 
3. BUDGET UPDATE 
 
 The Strategic Manager, Visitor Services introduced a report which provided 

an update on the budget for the Museum to 31 August 2013. 
 
The budget was on track, although maintenance costs tended to be 
variable. 
 
It was AGREED - 
 
That the report be noted. 

 
4. EASTLEIGH MUSEUM/BURSLEDON WINDMILL DRAFT JOINT 

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 This item was considered in conjunction with Bursledon Windmill Joint 

Management Committee.  
 
The Strategic Manager, Visitor Services advised that the Joint Management 
Agreement for Eastleigh Museum (the Principal Agreement) had expired on 
31 March 2011. The Joint Management Agreement for the Windmill, which 
was supplemental to the Principal Agreement, would also terminate on the 
expiry of the principal Agreement, although the County Council’s lease of 
the Windmill from Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust would expire on 
31 March 2015. 
 
It was suggested that in future the two Agreements should be contained in 
one document and the draft was now brought to this meeting for Members’ 
consideration. 
 
Reference was made to the recent decision by Hampshire County Council 
to form a new Hampshire Solent Cultural Trust with Winchester City Council, 
to which the services and funding for the County Council Arts and Museums 
Service would be transferred. Winchester City Council was to make a 
decision on the proposal in November 2013. Members were concerned that 
the Agreement may not be adhered to under such a Trust and considered 
that more detail was required on the proposed Trust before a decision on 
the new Agreement could be made. 

3



 

 

 
The Strategic Manager, Visitor Services advised that the issue of the 
Agreement would be discussed during the process to set up the new Trust. 
Legal advice would also be taken on the issue. In the meantime, the 
process for the signing of the new Agreement needed to be pursued, and 
involvement sought from all parties concerned, including the relevant Local 
Area Committees. 
 
In addition, it was brought to the Committees’ attention that the Hampshire 
Buildings Preservation Trust (HBPT) had purchased the Windmill in 1981 
and restored the building over the next ten years. In 1990, Hampshire 
County Council had taken over management of the Windmill, under a lease 
which ran until 2015. Under the supplement to the old Agreement, the 
Bursledon Windmill Joint Management Committee should comprise two 
members appointed by the HBPT, who were entitled to attend and vote in 
respect of matters relating to the Windmill at the Committee. Two members 
had subsequently been attending meetings and had provided an input to 
proceedings. However, the draft Agreement now before the Committees 
made no reference to HBPT, although it was noted that Bursledon Parish 
Council was now included as a party in the draft Agreement. 
 
The Committee agreed that HBPT’s input had been, and was still, valuable 
to the Committee and that the two representatives should be included on the 
Windmill Committee in the new Agreement to be drawn up.  
 
It was AGREED -  
 
(1) That consultation on the draft Agreement proceed with all interested 

parties; and 
 
(2) That the draft Agreement be considered again at the next meetings of 

the Committees. 
 
5. HAMPSHIRE SOLENT CULTURAL TRUST 
 
 This item was considered in conjunction with Bursledon Windmill Joint 

Management Committee. 
 
The Strategic Manager, Visitor Services advised that the Executive Member 
for Culture, Recreation and Countryside had made the decision on 25 
September 2013 to establish the Hampshire Solent Cultural Trust in 
partnership with Winchester City Council, which was to make the decision 
on the Trust in November 2013. 
 
Committee members requested that the link to the documents relating to 
this decision be sent to them for information.  
 
It was AGREED - 
 
That the report be noted. 

4



 

 

 
6. DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
 It was advised that the next meeting would be arranged for late 

January/early February 2014, in order for the draft Joint Management 
Agreement to be discussed and also for the Head of Museums to consult 
the Committee on the setting up of the new Trust. 

 
M5204 

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

JOINT MEETING OF BURSLEDON WINDMILL AND EASTLEIGH 
MUSEUM JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES 

 
Wednesday, 5 February 2014  (10:00 am – 12:45 pm) 

 
PRESENT: 
 
Representing Eastleigh Borough Council: Councillors Bicknell, Broadhurst, 
Craig, Cross and Mrs Sollitt 
  
Representing Hampshire County Council: Councillors Davidovitz and Kyrle  
 
Representing Bursledon Parish Council: Councillors Mrs Andrewes and 
McCormick 
 
Representing Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust: Mr Jackson and 
Mrs Sutton 
 
Representing One Community: Jean Robert-Jones 
 
Tom de Wit, Tim Kelly, Janet Owen and John Tickle – County Arts & 
Museum Service 
 
Diccon Bright and Guy Riddoch – Area Co-ordinators, Eastleigh Borough 
Council 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors House, Irish and 
Lyon.   
 

________________________________________ 
 

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That Councillor Kyrle be appointed Chairman of the meeting. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3. CURATOR'S REPORTS 
 
Tom De Wit presented his Curator’s reports for both Bursledon Windmill 

and Eastleigh Museum. 

In respect of Bursledon Windmill, whilst the current adverse weather 

conditions meant that the Windmill was not currently operating, a number 

of well-received events had been held.  The Mill by Torchlight event, for 

example, was part of a national initiative and was conducted in partnership 

7



2 

with Wildern School – the first time that this had happened.  Visitor figures 

were on a par with last year’s, and looked set to exceed that.  The service 

had received full accreditation standards, helping to ensure greater 

restoration of the Mill itself.  Flour from the City of Winchester Mill was now 

being sold at Bursledon Windmill, enabling cross-promotion of the two 

visitor attractions.   

In response to a question, Tom confirmed that he would compile a list of 

postcodes of who was visiting the Windmill. 

As a result of recent auditing, the report also contained an initial risk 

register and the meeting noted the contents therein.  Janet Owen 

confirmed that this ensured reporting of risk management into the JMC 

process, and would evolve over time.  She stressed though that the risks 

reported here were more financially driven (as a result of the recent audit) 

and was just part of wider risk management across the whole service.  

This would be highlighted in future risk registers.  At the next JMC, there 

would be a further update on the risk management process.   

Turning to Eastleigh Museum, Tom reported on the exciting Mount project 

which explored Eastleigh’s heritage in trade, commerce and science.  

External funding for this had been received from the company now 

redeveloping the Mount.  This was greatly welcomed and enabled work to 

be carried out on the specimens.  The exhibition of ‘A Soldier’s Journey’ 

had also brought in considerable external funding and again demonstrated 

the depth of history in the Borough. 

Again a risk register for Eastleigh Museum was presented, and Members 

noted the content therein. 

Members welcomed both reports and, in respect of Eastleigh Museum 

queried whether stepped changes to the front of the Museum and 

sponsorship of displays could both be explored so as to refresh the venue.  

Whilst there were exciting and elaborate exhibitions and features toward 

the rear, the front of the Museum had not changed for some time.  

Councillor Cross, Mayor of Eastleigh, suggested that this could be linked 

to the forthcoming ‘Mayoral Mile’.  Officers agreed to look into the 

suggestions. 

 
4. HAMPSHIRE SOLENT CULTURAL TRUST 

 
It was noted that Janet Owen had been appointed as Interim Chief 

Executive of the Trust Board as well as retaining her County position.  To 

that end, John Tickle, Assistant Director of Culture and Heritage, was 

attending this meeting to represent the County Council. 

Janet Owen presented the framework and supporting documents for the 

creation of the Trust, which was felt would ensure stability for the two sites 

and take funding (both external and internal) into the future.  She 

confirmed that this was now at the implementation stage with staff and 

8



3 

union consultations now in progress.  A Trust Board was being set up, and 

related legal agreements and budgets being drafted.  A decision was likely 

in the early summer, and it was stressed that partnerships were both 

crucial and integral to the proposals.  John Tickle added that the County 

Council had guaranteed that funding would be sustained and without such 

an independent Trust the two venues would be vulnerable.  The County, 

however, would still have responsibility for ensuring/financing maintenance 

and utilities. 

Borough representatives remained concerned with a number of key 

aspects to the proposals and the required three year commitment on Local 

Area Committee budgets.  It was felt that earlier questions and concerns 

had not yet been addressed.   

To move forward, it was agreed that the two Local Area Committee Chairs 

needed to meet and discuss the situation further with their respective 

Members.  Guy Riddoch and Diccon Bright would therefore submit 

detailed questions and specific areas of concern to the County Council 

within the next couple of days.  On receipt of the response from the 

County Council, the two Local Area Committee team meetings needed to 

meet and come to a decision on whether / how they wished to proceed.  

This process, and communication back to the County Council, would need 

to be done by 21 February 2014 in order to meet required timescales.  

Alongside this, Bursledon Parish Council would be meeting next week to 

confirm its position.   

 
5. DRAFT JOINT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT FOR EASTLEIGH 

MUSEUM AND BURSLEDON WINDMILL 
 
This item was deferred until the Trust issues were resolved. 
 

6. DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meetings of the two Joint Management Committees would be 
held on a Wednesday morning in June, exact date and venue to be 
confirmed. 
 

_______________________________________ 
 

 
 
 

 
 

9



10

This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

  
  

  

Committee: EASTLEIGH MUSEUM 
JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

Date of Meeting: 12th JUNE 2014 

Title of Report: CURATOR’S REPORT 

Author: Annabel Cook 

  
Purpose: 
  
 
  
 
 
 
1 Providing a Welcoming and Well Maintained Museum 
 
 

1.1 Museum Service Delivery 
 
During the past five months the Area Team have been working with One Community to ensure the 
museum continues to develop and serve its local community.  The visitor figures show a 37% 
increase in the last year which demonstrates the success of the partnership.  We are working hard 
to improve elements of communications and joint planning with One Community to continue and 
further develop the successes of the partnership. 
 
The Area Team has been liaising with Winchester School of Art to develop a meaningful 
partnership between Eastleigh Museum and the University.  Winchester School of Art will be 
delivering an exhibition in the summer of 2014 which will showcase some of their Post-Graduate 
work at the museum.  We hope that the exhibition will be both stimulating and thought-provoking 
for visitors to the museum and aim to develop this partnership in the coming years. 
 
The Area Team also applied for and successfully gained funding from Hampshire Commemorates 
for a community project at Eastleigh Museum around WW1.  Working with a community group 
sourced by One Community, an artist will work with local people to create fabric bunting which will 
be inspired by letters sent from the front to families in Eastleigh during the war.  The project will 
take place in June and July 2014 and the bunting will then be on display at the museum before 
going on tour in the South East. 
 
1914, Hampshire Big Theme for this year is a major programme of events across the county.  In  
Eastleigh is A Soldier’s Journey, which is part of this programme will come to Eastleigh in October 
2014.  The exhibition is being coordinated by the central Exhibitions team but will also feature a 
significant section of work which is being created through the ENtrenchED project .    The project, 
which has £49,450 funding from HLF Young Roots involves five groups of young people from 
South East Hampshire, including Wildern School, who are exploring what life was like during 1914.   
 

Report on activities at or relating to Eastleigh Museum 
Covering period January to May 2014 

Agenda Item 5

11



 

2 
 

 
 

 
 
 

1.2 Visitor Figures 
 
The visitor figures for the financial year 13/14 show a significant increase over the past two 
years. 
 

Year April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Totals 

 

2009 – 

2010  
2179 1864 1521 2574 2693 2046 2401 1714 1300 3087 3598 3236 28,213 

 

2010 – 

2011 
2372 1567 1780 2493 3205 2091 2349 1881 1151 1236 2109 1759 24,041 

 

2011 – 

2012 
1713 1408 1516 2022 2322 1805 1542 1351 1297 1140 1550 1321 18,987 

 

2012 – 

2013 
923 163 1153 1131 1640 1213 1153 2018 962 1094 1576 

 

1236 

 

14,252 

 

2013 – 

2014 
1470 1523 1279 1405 2461 1571 1910 1788 1139 1538 1692 1738 19,514 

2014 – 

2015  
1926             

 
 
 
 
 
 

12



 

3 
 

2 Hosting Special Temporary Exhibitions and Related Events 
 

2.1 SPEED! 

 
 
 
 

 
(Hampshire Chronicle February 20th 2014) 
 
 

Having hosted Stuffed and MOUNTed, the Area Team 
followed up with another locally produced exhibition, 
SPEED!  This exhibition told the story of Hampshire’s 
contribution to the development of high-speed 
transport.  At Eastleigh, the exhibition featured 
information and exhibits about the Gordon Keeble 
Company.  Visitors were able to see original Gordon 
Keeble badges featuring the ironic tortoise symbol 
which was chosen by John Gordon and Jim Keeble to 
represent their cars, as well as replica models of 
some of the cars produced in Eastleigh during the 
1960s.  The exhibition also featured elements of the 
Spitfire story, which made its maiden flight from 
Eastleigh Airport  and included contributions from 
local people as well as exhibits loaned from 
Tangmere Aviation Museum.  The exhibition proved to 
be popular both with local people and the press who 
gave significant coverage to the exhibition. 
 

13



 

4 
 

2.2 Lost World Zoo Tour 
 

 
 
 

 
3 Caring for Collections, Promoting Access, and Providing Specialist 

Knowledge and Advice 
 
3.1 Caring for collections 
We were delighted to have the opportunity to show the Mayor and Mayoress of Eastleigh 
around the collections centre at Chilcomb House in Winchester in April as part of the Civic 
Day hosted by Councillor Thornber as Chairman of Hampshire County Council. They were 
able to see ‘behind-the-scenes’ in both stores and conservation workshops where objects 
from Eastleigh are cared for and kept so that they can be enjoyed by present and future 
generations. The Gordon Keeble sports car, the third one of 99 built on Eastleigh Airport in 
the 1960s, featured amongst the vehicles in store that the visitors were able to see, as well 
as maps of the railways.  
            
All the objects relating to the Borough of Eastleigh that are kept in the Winchester stores 
have been monitored regularly throughout this period.  
 
3.2 Promoting access to collections 
The Collections Team has arranged for Pirellis to borrow back a fascinating selection of 
objects that we look after for its Open Day on Saturday 7 June. We are preparing the 
company’s Land Rover fire engine, original bronze sign, a bicycle that workers used to use 
around the site to speed up trips to the toilets and examples of the cables they used to 
make, all for display on the day.  
 
The team is also making it possible for the Gordon Keeble car to be back in Eastleigh for 
the 50th anniversary celebrations being organised by the Gordon Keeble Owners Club over 
the last weekend in June. Although she is not in full running order at the moment, the car 

Currently, the museum is host to the Lost World  Zoo 
Tour.  Designed and curated by the central 
Exhibitions team, the show features a range of extinct 
animals created entirely from LEGO, including a large 
Sabre-Toothed Cat made from 160,000 bricks, a 
flock of 6 LEGO dodos and a life-sized Neanderthal 
man.  Alongside the LEGO models are specimens 
from Hampshire’s Natural Sciences and Archaeology 
collections. Teeth from Ice Age mammals, 
Neanderthal hand axes, fossilised prehistoric sea 
creatures and a selection of the world’s largest 
beetles and butterflies are some of the more 
impressive objects on display. The exhibition also 
contains LEGO and Duplo play tables and dressing 
up activities.  
 
 

14



 

5 
 

will be brought along on Sunday 28 June to the grand finale and event celebratory 
photograph. 
 
The Collections Team continues to find interesting objects from the collections stored at 
Chilcomb House to feature in the Hampshire Hidden Treasure’s case. Bronze Age 
weapons from a hoard found in Selborne in the late 19th century were put on display 
recently replacing fossils of Tywford Down. Many of the pieces were deliberately broken or 
bent before they were cast into a lake about 3500 years ago in a ritual act. This type of 
display serves to illustrate the diversity of the collections cared for by Hampshire County 
Council and that are available for exhibition at Eastleigh Museum. 
 
A Lost World Zoo Explorers day took place in May that provided lots of activities based on 
the biology and geology collections, including an ice age table-top safari, a fossil matching 
game and a chance to get up close to giant moths. 
 
3.3 Providing specialist knowledge and advice 
Specimens from the Natural Sciences and Archaeology collections were selected by our 
keepers to enhance the LEGO based Lost World Zoo exhibition, including a ‘bout coupe’ 
handaxe found at Highbridge, Eastleigh and a selection of the world’s largest beetles and 
butterflies. Additional information about fossil plants and more aquarium fossils were 
provided to supplement the material put together for the first version of the exhibition that 
was at Milestones.  
 

             
Exotic moths and butterflies  Fossil trilobites recreated in Lego  
 
Other work undertaken by the collections team has been driven by the ‘1914’ Big Theme 
project.  A great deal of effort has gone in to researching and supplying text and images 
for the website and for the exhibition which will feature online and in all the community 
museums, including Eastleigh Museum, in October. Objects are being selected from all of 
our historic collections and conservation work has started, which will continue throughout 
the summer. These include historic costume and textiles from the decorative art collection 
because all the venues for ‘Soldiers’ Journey’ will feature a case of costume. 
 
One of the most significant tasks undertaken so far has been the restoration to running 
order of the Thornycroft ‘J’ type military general service lorry, which recently featured on 
BBC South Today and on Radio Berkshire.  The lorry was one of 5,000 built in 
Basingstoke for the War Office. It was delivered in March 1916 and is one of very few 

15



 

6 
 

survivors still in military livery.  It will be touring the county throughout the summer. Full 
details are available on our website. 
 

             
At Chilcomb before being put through its       Collections Officer and engineer, Nigel  
paces for the BBC South team       Spender, rebuilt the engine  

 
4 Inspiring Learning and Community Engagement  

 
4.1  Formal Education Provision 

 
 Over the 4 month period January to April  2014 (school Spring Term), the museum has 

had 11 school groups visiting and the CEL Team has worked with a further 9 as outreach, 
a total of 327 pupils in school groups.  For the year 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014, the 
museum worked with 750 pupils in school groups, exceeding the target of 500. Where 
sessions are self led the CEL Team still liaise with the school and provide resources for 
them to use. All other sessions are fully planned and led by the CEL staff. The CEL Team 
have also just finished planning and launching a revised offer to primary schools based on 
the New National Curriculum, with a brochure being produced and sent out to all schools 
in Hampshire and the neighbouring authorities. 

 

Date School Key Stage 
& Year 
Group 

No. of 
children 

Type of workshop 

15 & 29 
Jan  
5 Feb 

Wildern Secondary KS3, Yr 9 7 3 X Outreach workshops in 
school for Entrenched Project 

16 Jan Oak Lodge School KS2, Yr 5 14 Self led general visit 

3, 4, 5 
& 6 Feb 

Hiltingbury Junior KS2, Yr 4 74 4 X self led general visits 

5 Feb Focus School KS2, Yr 5/6 11 Our Town in the Past 

26 Feb 
4 Mar 

Shakespeare Junior KS2, Yr 3 85 3 X Our Town in the Past 

26 Feb  
5, 19 & 
26 Mar 

Wildern Secondary KS3, Yr 7/8 18 4 X Outreach workshops in 
school for Entrenched Project 

18 Mar Knightwood Primary KS2, Yr 5 61 2 X Our Town in the Past 

3 Apr Knightwood Primary KS2, Yr 5 57 2 X Outreach local history 
workshops 

 
 

16



 

7 
 

Impact evidence and general feedback is collected from all school sessions, to aid 
evaluation and service planning. All feedback was very positive.  Examples: 
 
 “We had a fantastic trip and the children learnt such a lot from your input at the museum. 
They are definitely 'hooked' in now for the rest of the topic.” KS2 teacher, Our Town in the 
Past session. 
 
“Excellent range of activities which kept the children engaged. The pace was good. Small 
presentations at the end focused the children.”  KS2 Teacher, Our Town in the Past 
session. 
 
“The visit was excellent all round… exactly the correct pitch for the children... I would 
recommend it to others.” KS2 Teacher, Our Town in the Past session. 
 
“The children realised that the roads were not always there! They enjoyed looking at the 
maps and comparing them through the ages and identifying changes.” KS2 Teacher, Our 
Town in the Past session. 
 
The Our Town in the Past sessions have been greatly enhanced by the CEL Team adding 
their “Eastleigh’s Victorian Journey” interactive steam train panel to the permanent 
displays. All six feedback forms scored all elements in the top two grades. 
 
One highlight of the schools’ programme has been the Spring Term element of the 
Entrenched WW1 project with Wildern School which the two CEL Officers have led on and 
has involved much behind the scenes work with the microfiche reader in the library! The 
students have been researching newspaper stories from the home front in Eastleigh 1914-
18 and thinking about what the articles tell them about life in the town during the war. 
Participants have been fascinated by stories about entertaining the troops, requisitioning 
schools as hospitals, labour shortages, new opportunities for women, fundraising efforts, 
bereavement, food shortages and more! The young people have dramatized how the 
stories would look on a TV news programme today and are currently creating a newsreel 
style film which will be shown in the Soldiers’ Journey exhibition in the autumn. The CEL 
Officers also went on the 12 Hour Trench Experience with Wildern students during the 
Easter Holiday as part of the same project (which is an Ashcroft Arts Centre HLF Young 
Roots funded project which the SE CEL Team are delivering a part of). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2  Community Engagement and Learning 
 
In line with the Service Plan aim of widening participation, a programme of activities for a 
range of audiences was offered over the 5 month period.  231 people (does not include 30 
May event) took part in the led activities.  The CEL Team also provided self-led drop-in 
activities for children for the school holidays. The figures below are for led activities and 

 

Wildern students at the  
12 Hour Trench Experience 

17



 

8 
 

do not include participants in the self-led offer. The self-led activities in Stuffed & Mounted 
were especially popular and there was also a Lego Mini-figure Trail for May Half Term, in 
partnership with Eastleigh Library. 
 
 Activity/Event Target Audience Date No. of 

participants 

Birds in Winter workshop 
(linked to Stuffed & 
Mounted exhibition) 

Families 2 Jan 32 

Fly or Flop workshop 
(linked to Speed exhibition) 

Families 20 Feb 88 

Home Front workshop for 
2nd Eastleigh Brownies 

Children in the community 10 Mar 14 

Peg People craft workshop 
 

Families 10 Apr 42 

Local History workshop for 
8th Chandlers Ford 
Brownies 

Children in the community 13 May 27 

Local History workshop for 
8th Chandlers Ford 
Rainbows 

Children in the community 14 May 28 

Lost World Explorers 
workshop 

Families 30 May Not known at 
time of 
reporting 

 
The highlight of the programme was the led activity offer for families in the 4 school 
holidays. The CEL Team try to stick for Thursdays for these events and families are 
beginning to anticipate them. They are usually linked to the temporary exhibition and in the 
absence of a suitable theme they are used to renew interest in the permanent displays, as 
for the Peg People activity which got participants to look at the dolly pegs on display 
before making their own old fashioned peg doll. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

5 Marketing and Management 
 
5.1 Publicity and Promotion 

  
In May 2014 a south-east area What's On leaflet, with an increased print run of 12,500 
was produced. This covers the period from June to September and features Westbury 
Manor Museum, Eastleigh Museum, Bursledon Windmill, Gosport Discovery Centre and 
Gosport Gallery. It is being professionally distributed throughout the region.  

 
5.2 Online Marketing 
  

 

Peg doll family created by an 
Eastleigh family in the museum 
at the Easter holiday activity 

18



 

9 
 

Events at Eastleigh Museum and Bursledon Windmill were promoted on a monthly basis 
via the Hampshire County Council cultural e-newsletter, Showcase. With new people 
signing up regularly, Showcase is now reaching over 30,000 subscribers. It regularly 
features both an exhibition and an object of the month as well as signposting recipients to 
events in their local area. In addition, the monthly e-newsletter Museums Monthly is sent to 
nearly 12,000 subscribers who have asked to receive museums specific information.  
  
5.3 Research 
  
Postcodes are now routinely collected from visitors at key sites over two 3 monthly periods 
- January to March and June to August. Postcodes are profiled using Mosaic software and 
provide ongoing information on which groups of people are using and not using our 
services and how individual visitor profiles compare to the local area.  This feeds into the 
service and marketing planning processes. Profiles are currently being created for the 
most recent postcodes, collected between January and March 2014. 
  
5.4 Social Media 
  
The face book page and twitter feed set up by the exhibitions team at Chilcomb House to 
promote exhibitions and events at Museums Service sites are now well established. 
Facebook now has 1300 “likes” and twitter over 2100 followers. 
 
5.5 Promotions undertaken centrally for Lost World Zoo at Eastleigh Museum 
 

• A4 posters designed and printed 

• A5 flyers designed and printed (sent to Eastleigh Museum and Eastleigh Library) 

• Social media coverage including a prominent banner on our Facebook page, 
Facebook posts and twitter posts 

• Direct email – featured in email to  database, c. 12,000 subscribers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Annabel Cook, May 2014 

19



20

This page is intentionally left blank



Eastleigh Museum JMC and Bursledon Windmill JMC Budget 2013/14 and 2014/15

EASTLEIGH MUSEUM BURSLEDON WINDMILL

Budget Actuals Budget** Actuals Budget Actuals Budget** Draft

end Apr end Apr 

EXPENDITURE 2013/14 2013/14 2014/15 2014/15 2013/14 2013/14 2014/15 2014/15

£ £ £ £ £ £

Community Curator (33%) and Venue Management 10,669 10,510 10,669 256 10,669 10,510 10,669 256

Front of House Staff 0 0 0 0 11,000 10,437 11,000 871

Essential Maintenance and Museum Venue Costs* 20,600 14,856 20,600 574 5,000 7,855 5,000 376

Exhibitions 23,699 23,699 23,699 1,975 5,000 5,000 5,000 417

Collections 40,991 40,991 40,991 3,416 2,000 2,000 2,000 167

Learning & Community Engagement 11,492 11,492 11,492 958 22,983 22,983 22,983 1,915

Management & Marketing 5,525 5,525 5,525 460 5,525 5,525 5,525 460

Total Expenditure 112,976 107,073 112,976 7,638 62,177 64,310 62,177 4,462

Income 5,000 5,797 5,000 3,000 1,500 3,263 1,500 0

Net Expenditure 107,976 101,276 107,976 4,638 60,677 61,047 60,677 4,462

Total Eastleigh Museum 107,976 101,276 107,976 4,638

Total Bursledon Windmill 60,677 61,047 60,677 4,462

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE 168,653 162,322 168,653 9,100

INCOME 2013/14 2013/14 2014/15 2014/16

HCC Contribution 108,253 101,922 108,253 8,071

EBC Contribution - Eastleigh Museum 30,000 30,000 30,000 0

EBC Contribution - Bursledon Windmill 27,728 27,728 27,728 0

BPC Contribution - Bursledon Windmill 2,672 2672 2,672 0

Total Income 168,653 162,322 168,653 8,071

* Due to annual fluctuations in property and maintenance costs, some years this line will be overspent as works need to be carried out and in 

other years the burden will be lighter.  HCC will pick up any such overspend in years when more work needs to be done.

** A revised presentation of the 14/15 budget will be tabled at the next JMC to reflect Q1 and Q2 as HCC budget and 

Q3 and Q4 as Trust budget.

21



22

This page is intentionally left blank



23



24

This page is intentionally left blank



25



26

This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

   
Committee: Eastleigh Museum Joint Management Committee  
Date of Meeting: 11th June 
Title of Report: Hampshire Solent Cultural Trust (working title) Update 
Author: Janet Owen 
Purpose: Provide an update on the Hampshire Solent Cultural Trust 

(working title) and recap on the Implementation Stage 2 
consultation 

 
1. Introduction 
On 25th September, 2013, the Executive Member for Culture, Recreation and Countryside at 
Hampshire County Council (HCC) made a decision to establish the Trust in partnership with 
Winchester City Council (WCC), and in principle to transfer the operation of arts and museums 
services to the Trust. Winchester City Council’s Portfolio Holder for Economic Development has 
approved the same recommendations at their Council’s full meeting on 6th November 2013. Final 
decisions regarding the details of transfer will be made during the summer of 2014. 
2. Implementation phase 
The decisions by both Executive Members allowed activity to move into the implementation phase. 
Since November 2013, the main focus of Officers has been on: 

• Consultation with district and borough council funding partners regarding detailed proposals 
and with partners who support the operation of venues, including volunteer teams 

• Formal consultation with staff and Unions regarding TUPE arrangements, and entering into 
dialogue on organisational proposals 

• Undertaking work to establish the Trust, including the appointment of a ‘founding board’ 
• Preparation of legal agreements associated with the transfer of arts and museums services 
• Preparation of detailed budgets and cash flow forecasts 

3. Progress to-date 
Work on each of the strands of activity has progressed to plan since the verbal update at the last 
meeting.  
On 7th March 2014, the Founding Board of Trustees held their first meeting as a Shadow Board.  At 
the time of writing, the Board is composed of four members;  Alan Lovell, Yinnon Ezra, Cllr Roy Perry, 
Leader of Hampshire County Council and Cllr Mike Southgate from Winchester City Council. The 
Board is chaired by Alan Lovell. In addition to agreeing the Articles of Association and Memorandum 
of Understanding, the Board have now registered the Trust at Companies House and submitted an 
application to the Charity Commission. 
One of the Board’s early decisions has been to formally name the Trust, the Hampshire Cultural 
Trust. Work is currently underway to develop a brand identity and website for the new organisation. 
In addition to developing a Five Year plan, which will form part of the Management Funding 
Agreement with the Founding Local Authorities, the Board is also undertaking work to begin 
developing their long term vision for the new organisation. The Board will engage District and 

Agenda Item 6

27



2 
 

Borough Councils as its Core Partners and/or key stakeholders in the coming months to develop this 
strategic planning. 
4. Forthcoming milestones 
Over the summer, the Board and Founding Local Authorities will finalise the necessary legal 
agreements and the Executive Member/Portfolio Holder for the Founding Local Authorities will 
make their final decisions to transfer staff and services into the new Trust organisation. In addition, 
the Trust will undertake its own decision making process to accept the transfer of staff and services. 
Once the final decision has been made, the two Local Authorities and the Trust will work with staff 
and Unions to put in place the final arrangements necessary for staff to TUPE across to the Trust in 
the autumn. Alongside the formal HR processes, a programme of business change activity is 
underway to support staff in both organisations with impending cultural change.  
In addition to the mechanics of establishment of and transfer to Trust, work will take place over the 
summer in key areas already identified within the Implementation Plan. These areas of work include 
setting up a Gift Aid scheme and training staff at venues and establishing a Trading Arm. 
5. Eastleigh Borough Council  and the Hampshire Cultural Trust 
Formal feedback was received in February from Eastleigh Borough Council on the detailed proposals 
of the Hampshire Cultural Trust in relation to Eastleigh Museum.  In summary, this confirmed the 
position to be as set out below:  
 
• Eastleigh Borough Council have confirmed funding for 2014/15 at £30,000 and in principle the 

same level of funding (£30,000) for 2015/16 and 2016/17, on the basis of a six month notice 
period in the first year 

• The future notice period is further subject to clarity about Youth Support Service funding for 
2015/16, 2016/17.  If this is not clarified EBC will revert to a year on year renewal 

• The Local Area Committee are willing to enter into a new Joint Management Agreement 
commencing April 2014  

• Grant Payments will be made in April of each year  
• The agreement for Eastleigh Borough Council becoming a Core Partner status to the Trust has 

been deferred until notice periods are confirmed 
 
 

28



  
  

Committee Eastleigh Museum JMC 

Date of meeting 11 June 2014 

Title of report Annual small bodies return 2013/14 

Author Rob Sarfas 

Purpose of report:  
To present the annual small bodies return for 2013/14 for approval by the JMC and 
submission to external audit 

 

1. Introduction  
 

1.1. Eastleigh Museum JMC is required to submit an annual return by 30 June 2014 
summarising its financial activities for the financial year 1 April 2013 to 31 
March 2014.  This return comprises four sections: 

• accounting statements 

• annual governance statement 

• external auditor’s certificate and opinion 

• internal auditor’s report   

2. Annual governance statement  
 

2.1. Members of the JMC are asked to confirm, to the best of their knowledge and 
belief, whether they agree with eight statements in respect of the accounting 
statements for the year ended 31 March 2014. 

2.2. A copy of the annual governance statement for 2013/14 is attached at 
Appendix B. Committee is requested to consider and approve the annual 
governance statement, so it can be signed by the Chair and the Committee 
Clerk and submitted for audit. 

2.3. Appendix A contains some notes to aid discussion of the annual governance 
statement.  

3. Accounting statements 2013/14 

3.1. The accounting statements provide a high level summary of the 2013/14 
financial activity of Eastleigh Museum JMC and are attached at Appendix C.  

3.2. The Committee is requested to approve the accounting statements, so they can 
be signed by the Chair and submitted for audit. 

Agenda Item 7

29



4. External auditor’s certificate and opinion 

 

4.1. BDO LLP are the appointed external auditors for Eastleigh Museum JMC and 
will complete this section of the return following the conclusion of their audit. 

5. Internal auditor’s report 

5.1. An internal audit of Eastleigh Museum JMC is carried out once every three 
years as part of a risk assessed cyclical programme. Under this programme, 
the last audit was carried out in 2011/12, with the next one therefore due in 
2014/15. 

5.2. Where appropriate, reliance is placed on assurance work carried out on HCC 
corporate systems used by the museum to avoid duplication and additional cost 
to the body.  

5.3. The internal auditor’s report is attached to the hard copy of the annual return. 

6. Recommendations 

 

6.1. That the annual governance statement for 2013/14 is agreed by the Committee 
and signed by the Chair and Clerk. 

6.2. That the accounting statement for 2013/14 is approved by the Committee and 
signed by the Chair. 

6.3. That the internal audit report is noted. 

30



 

Appendix A 

Eastleigh Museum JMC – Annual Governance Statement 

1. The Eastleigh Museum JMC budgets are governed by the financial standing 
orders and procedures of Hampshire County Council (HCC), with accounts 
prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom. 

2. HCC’s financial systems and procedures ensure segregation of duties, 
including financial limits of responsibility.  

 Fraud and irregularity prevention, detection and investigation is covered by 
HCC’s internal auditors, including the assessment of the effectiveness of 
controls and detection processes. 

3. The accounts are prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom.  

4. A “Notice of Public Rights” is displayed at the museum each year, inviting 
anyone to arrange a time to inspect the accounts between specific dates (20 
working days). 

5. The museum is not owned by the Joint Management Committee and therefore 
all associated risks and liabilities arising from the land and built assets remain 
with the owners. The JMC is therefore only responsible for the financial risks 
associated with the running of Eastleigh Museum JMC.  

Funding is provided to cover all costs on an annual basis by Eastleigh Borough 
Council, HCC and income generation. The museum does not therefore carry 
deficits or accrue reserves. 

Risk is covered through reporting to the JMC, including the regular reports of 
the Curator. 

 The Eastleigh Museum staff are currently employed by Hampshire County 
Council. The staff work under the operational procedures, including financial 
and health and safety, of Hampshire County Council. 

Budgets and updates are produced for the Joint Management Committee by 
officers from HCC’s Arts & Museums Service. Financial support is provided by 
Hampshire County Council, as is the internal audit service. 

6. Eastleigh Museum uses HCC’s financial systems and procedures.  

 Internal audit of Eastleigh Museum is carried out on a cyclical basis (currently 
once every three years) with reliance placed on assurance work carried out on 
HCC’s corporate systems to avoid duplication and additional costs for the JMC. 
This is considered an appropriate, proportionate and risk based approach to the 
internal audit requirements of the museum. 

31



7. Officers have responded to matters brought to their attention via internal and 
external audits.  

8. The annual financial accounts take into account everything relating to each 
financial year regardless of when the activity took place. 

32


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes 2

	5 Curator's Report and end of year finances
	Eastleigh and Bursledon JMC June 2014
	Eastleigh Museum annual return 20140529
	Museum JMCs - 2014-05-27 - Blank governance statement

	6 Update on Hampshire Solent Cultural Trust
	7 Annual small bodies return 2013/14

